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Matthew S. McNicholas, State Bar No. 190244

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PERMANENTE
MEDICAL GROUP, a partnership; KAISER
FOUNDATION HEALTH PLANANC., a
corporation; KAISER FOUNDRATION
HOSPITALS, INC., a corporation; JOSEPH
HUANG, M.D.; and DOES-Ythrough 100,
inclusive,
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Fax: (310) 475-7871 0CT 3.0 204
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Attorneys for Plaintiff By — ) H:;rm!:rk
JAY ESPEJO, M.D.,, M.P.H.

SUPERIOR COURT FOR THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
JAY ESPEJO, M.D,, MP.H,, casemo.  BC5623877
Plaintiff,
COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES
V.

1. Wrongful Termination
in Violation of Public Policy;

2. Whistleblower Retaliation
(Health & Safety Code § 1278.5);

3. Whistleblower Retaliation
(Labor Code § 1102.5)

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
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THE PARTIES

1. At all times relevant hereto, Plaintiff JAY ESPEJO, M.D., M.P.H. (hereinafter,

':Plaintiff“) was a medical doctor, duly licensed to practice medicine in the State of California, and -

employed by Kaiser Corporate Defendants as a Physician in the specialty/subspecialty of Family
Medicine on an at;will basis at the Kaiser Permanente West Los Angeles Medical Center, located
at 6041 Cadillac Avenue in Los Angeles, California (hereinafter, "Kaisér-West LA").

2. At all times relevant hereto, Plaintiff was a resident of the Stite/of California,
County of Los Ang'eles.

3. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon allege$ that Defendant SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA PERMANENTE MEDICAL GROUP (heréipaticry "SCPMG") is a California
partne;ship, with its principle place of business in Pasadend, Califomia, in the County of Los
Angeles. SCPMG is one of the recipients of money funneted from KFHP and KFH.

4, Plaintiff is informed and belief/es’and thereon alieges that Defendants KAISER
FOUNDATION HEALTH PLAN, INCX(hereinafter, "KFHP") and KAISER FOUNDATION
HOSPITALS, INC. .(hereinafter, "KEH") are California corporations, authorized to transact and
transacting business in the Codnty.of Los Angeles, State of California, with its principal place of
business in California. KFHP and XFH are in form “non-profit” corporations that funnel operating
revenue to SCMPG;,

5, Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that KFHP, KFH, and
SCPMG de-business jointly, and with other entities owned and controlied by KFHP, under the
narle “Kniser Permanente.” Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that Kaiser
Permanente is a;m integrated healthcare delivery system comprised of the insurance company,
KFHP, its ddctors, organized as SCPMG, and its hospitals, which are wholly owned and/or
controlled by KFHP through its captive entity, KFH, which has no separate existence or identity
apart from KFHP.

6. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that KFHP is an insurance
company purporting to provide comprehensive total medical care to its members. KFHP describes

itself as the largest Health Maintenance Organization in the country. KFHP exercises total control
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over Defendant SCPMG and a number of other corporate and partnership entities, such that
SCPMG’s very existence as purported separate entity is a sham designed to perpetuate the myth
that KFHP is a legitimate “non-profit” corporation. Plaintiff is informed and believes tﬁat KFHP is
in fact a “for profit” enterprise regularly reporting its profitability publicly.

7. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that: KFHP’s total dominance
over KFH and SCPMG is evidence by the fact that KFH and SCPMG’s entire annual budget is set
by, controlled by, and approved by KFHP; all funds for KFH and SCPMG’s opeiations come from
KFHP; KFHP determines what “profit,” if any, SCPMG are allowed to riake; money that SCPMG
uses to pay bonuses to its doctors comes from KFHP; SCPMG does 76t bill any customers for most
of its services; barring emergencies or extremely rare instan¢es, SCPMG doctors are only allowed
to work for KFHP members; SCPMG’s only source of mofiey is from KFHP. KFHP provides
virtually all legal, human resources, insurance, commusfications, advertising, billing, and other
necessary services for KFH and SCPMG. Members buying health care coverage only pay money to
KFHP, not to SCPMG; they buy insurance frem KFHP and receive services through SCPMG; and

members” medical records identify Kaiser Permanente as the patients’ health care provider and are

maintained electronically in anint€grated electronic health record system called Kaiser Permanente -

HealthConnect®, to whickrall KFH, SCPMG, and KFH health professionals generally have access.
The Kaiser Permaneiife website claims, “Kaiser Permanente HealthConnect®, our comprehensive
electronic health record, is one of the largest private electronic health systems in the world. KP
HealthConnect-and our integrated model securely connect more than 611 medical offices and 37
hospitais, linking patients to their health care teams, their personal health information and the latest

medical knowledge. . . . As of March 2010, all Kaiser Permanente medical facilities are live with

. KP HealthConnect.” (http://share kaiserpermanente.org/total-health/connectivity/}. Plaintiff is

informed and believes and thereon alleges that advertising for the health care offered by KFHP as
health insurance and provided through SCPMG doctors is done predominantly by KFHP,
advertising as “Kaiser Permanente,” as seen in the multi-million dolar “Thrive” advertising
campaign. Plamntiff is informed and believes and thereoﬂ alieges that SCPMG does not own

hospitals, medical buildings, or the clinics where they work; they are owned by KFHP. KFHP
3
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provides all telephone, fax, and e-mail services for SCPMG. Plaintiff is informed and believes and
thereon alleges KFHP also provides health insurance and medical malpractice insurance to
SCPMG’s doctors. Plaintiff is informed and believes and thereon alleges that KFHP lawyers
routinely render legal advice and counsel to KFH and SCPMG, and have unfettered access to KFH
and SCPMG records; KFHP’s Human Resources department routinely investigates EEOC/DFEH
or other complaints of discrimination and/or retaliation regarding KFH and SCPMG’s practices and
employees, reporting to KFHP’s legal depaﬁment on all such investigations; K¥HP lawyers and
human resources staff do not obtain privacy waivers when seeking recordsof KFH and/or SCPMG
employees or investigating their claims; KFHP provides and pays or ali facilities in which KFH
and SCPMG conduct business.

8. Defendants SCPMG, KFHP, and KFH, if nét“separately noted, are collectively
referred to herein as "Kaiser Corporate Defendants,” Thes¢’Defendants are collectively liable under
either a joint employer theory or a single enterprise theory.

9. Defendant JOSEPH HUANG,>M.D. (hereinafter,' "HUANG") was at all fimes
relevant hereto a medical doctor, daly licensed to practice medicine in the State.of California,
employed by Kaiser Corporate Defendants as Chief of the Department of Family Medicine at
Kaiser-West LA, and a residentof the State of California, County of Los Angeles.

- 10.  Plaintiff i3, informed and believes and thereﬁpon alleges that Defendants DOES 1
through 100, inclusive, and each of them, at all times relevant hereto, were public, business, and/or
other entities:whose form is unknown committing torts in and/or engaged in purposeful economic
activity within the County of Los Angeles, State of California. |

11, The true names and capacities of Defendants DOES 1 through 100, and each of
them, whether individual, corporate, associate or o‘;herwise, are unknown to Plaintiff at this time,
therefore Plaintiff sues said Defendants by such fictitious names. Plaintiff will file DOE
amendments, and/or ask leave of court to amend this complaint to assert the true names and
capacities of these Defendants when they have been ascertained. Plaintiff is informed and believes,

and upon such information and belief alleges, that each Defendant herein designated as a DOE was

and is in some manner, negligently, wrongfully, or otherwise, responsible and liable to Plaintiff for
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the injuries and damages hereinafter alleged, and that Plaintiff’s damages, as herein alleged were

proximately caused by their conduct.

12, Plaintiff is informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that at all times material
herein the Defendants, and each of them, were the agents, servants, or employees, or ostensible
agents, servants, and empioyees of each other Defendant, and as such, were acting within the
course and scope of said agency and employment or ostensible agency and employment, except on
those occasions when Defendants were acting as principals, in which case, sait Defendants; and
each of them, were negligent in the selection, hiring, and use of the otherDefendants.

13. At all times mentioned herein, each of the Defendantswas the co-tortfeasor of each
of the other Defendants in doing the things hereinafter alleged.”

14, Plaintiff is further informed and believes ¢hat at all times relevant hereto,
Defendants, and each of them, acted in concert and\in fiftherance of the interests of each other
Defeﬁdant. The conduct of each Defendant combined and cooperated with the conduct of each of

the remaining Defendants so as to causesthe-herein described incidents and the resulting injuries

and damages to Plaintiff.

. VENUE AND JURISDICTION

15.  This Court/ias personal jurisdiction of Defendants, and each of them, because they
are residents of and/of deing business in the State of California.

16, TFhe wrongfu'l conduct alleged against Defendants, and each of them, occurred in the
County of Los Angeles, State of California. At all relevant tirﬁes hereto, the coﬁduct at issue was
part/of a ¢omtinuous and on-going pattern of behavior.

17.  This Court is the proper court because the injury and/or wrongful acts that are the
subject of this action occurred in its jurisdictional area and/or at least one Defendant now resides in
its jurisdictional area.

18.  Plaintiff has complied with and/or exhausted any applicable claims statutes and/or
administrative and/or internal remedies and/or grievance procedures, and/or is excused from

complying therewith.
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GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

19.  Plaintiff is a Board Certified Family Medicine physician. On or about September 1,
2011, Plaintiff began his employment as a Family Medicine Physician at Kaiser-West LA.

20.  Plaintiff was qualified for his position by reason of his education and training.
Plaintiff received his Bachelor’s degree in Physiology and Study of Religion, magna cum laude,
from the University of California, Los Angeles (hereinafter, "UCLA") in 2002. Plaintiff received
both his Doctorate in Medicine from the UCLA David Geffen School of Medicifie/and his Master
of Public Health from the UCLA Fielding School of Public Health in 2007 Plaintiff has been duly
licensed to practice medicine in the State of California since 2010. Kor around fall 2010, Plaintiff
was a Fellow with the United States Surgeon General. Plainiitf completed his residency in Family
Medicine with UCLA Health System, where he was Chief Resident, in 2011.

21. Inthe course of his employment, Plaintiff pétformed his various responsibilities as a
Family Medicine Physician in an exemplary fashior’ and otherwise capably performed each and
every condition of his employment agreeiment. Plaintiff was awarded the Kaiser Permanente
Access Award for July 2013 to May/2914. On or about December 20, 2013, Plaintiff waé advised
that he was awarded a Certificaie)of Recognition from the National Committee for Quality
Assurance for Delivery ofQuality Diabetes Care. On or about June 24, 2014, Plaintiff became
aware that he made Parther with SCPMG.

22.  Plaintiff also received numerous emails from patients commending Plaintiff on the
care he provided!’On or about March 5, 2014, one long-time patient, who had been with Kaiser for
abo(it 40 years, commended Plaintiff with an “On the Spot” Service Excellence certificate. The
patient wrote, in part, “Do Not Lose Him. He is a true professional.” (Emphasis in original.)
Plaintiff received other messages from patients praising and thanking him for his care, with some
even indicating Plaintiff was the best doctor they ever had at Kaiser. Patients under the care and
treatment of other prirﬁary care providers also specifically requested to be added to Plaintiff’s
patient panel, even if they knew it was full. |

23.  As a Family Medicine Physician at Kaiser-West LA, Plaintiff was the “primary care

provider” for a panel of approximately 2100-2200 patients. In the course of his employment,
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Plaintiff made multiple reports about the quality of care, services, or conditions at Kaiser-West LA,
in particular regarding the inappropriate prescribing practices of John Miguel, M.D. in the Urgent
Care Clinic, which is part of the Family Medicine service at Kaiser-West LA. Plaintiff became
aware, and subsequently reported, that Dr. Miguel prescribed narcotic substances to at least two of |
Plaintiff’s patients with no apparent medical necessity and in contradiction to the medical opinions
of two other Kaiser-West LA physicians.

24, On or about December 23, 2013, at or around 7:45 p.m., one of Plaifitiff’s patients,
"1," presented to Sarah Hooks, M.D. at the Kaiser-West LA Urgent Care:Clintic complaining of
coughing and wheezing. Patient "1" demanded that Dr. Hooks prestribeé a narcotic cough syrup.

The cough syrup Patient "1" wanted was a combination of Prome(hazine and Codeine, a Schedule

-V controlled substance under the Controlled Substances Act (21'U.S.C. §§ 801 ef seq.; 21 CF.R.

1308). Promethazine and Codeine are both central nervoussystem depressants.

25.  This cough syrup is the basis/for a>recreational drug called “Purple Drank,” a
cocktail of promethazine and codeine coighisyrip mixed with a lemon-lime soft drink and, often, a
hard, fruit-flavored candy. Purple Drank, also known as “sizzurp,” among other street names, can
be fatal, causing respiratory or cafdrac arrest. This kind of narcotic cough syrup notoriousty has
been associated with drug abuse-by certain hip-hop artists and professional athletes.

- 26, A reviéw.of Patient "1"’s chart revealed an active problem list of cocaine abuse,
amphetamine abbse;“hallucinogen abuse, and cannabis abuse. Based on her evaluation and
assessment of Patient "1", Dr. Hooks determined narcotic cough syrup was not medically necessary
to treat Patient "1"s wheezing and coughing due to asthma. Dr. Hooks offered to refill Patient
"]"'s asthma medication, but refused to prescribe the narcotic. Patient "1" refused asthma
medication or other care. Despite Dr. Hooks’ repeated explanations that narcotic cough syrup was
not appropriate care, Patient "1" remained angry and wanted to see Dr. Hooks’ supervisor. A nurse
later discussed with Patient "1" the option of obtaining a second opinion visit.

27.  Later that night, at or around 10:28 p.m., Patient "1" presented to Dr. Miguel at the
Kaiser-West LA Urgent Care Clinic for a second opinion. Dr. Miguel documented that Patient "1"

was “adamant” about getting the “cough medication,” noting Patient "1" to be “loud” and
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o o
“confrontational.” To appease Patient "1", Dr. Miguel prescribed the naréotic cough syrup. In his
encounter note, Dr. Miguel related, “Although I agreed with Dr. Hooks that the cough medication
was not the medication of choice given the [diagnosis] of Asthma, [upper respiratory infection] and
a [history] of multiple types of drug abuse, I went ahead and [prescribed} the medication anyway
just to appease the patient and not to go against Dr, Hooks’ evaluation and treatment.”

28.  In essence, Dr. Miguel prescribed a controlled substance ,when not medically
necessary, in violation of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. §§ 801 et'\veg)), 21 US.C. §
841(a); 21 C.F.R. 1306.04(a), the California Uniform Controlled Substances Act (CaL. HEALTH &
SAFeTY C. §§ 11000 ef seq.), California Health & Safety Code secfions~11152, 11153(a), and/or
California Business & Professions Code sections 2234(b), 2242(a),and 2266.

29.  The United States Drug Enforcement Agcﬁcy (hereinafter, "DEA") has stated, “As a
DEA registrant, a physician has a responsibility to exarcis¢’ a much greater degree of oversight to
prevent diversion and abuse in the case of a kngwin or’suspected addict than in the case of a patient
for whom there are no indicators of drug abuse:

30.  The Medical Board of €alifornia has recognized that prescription drug abuse and
the resulting deaths is an issue that#mst be given the utmost priority.

3l. Dr. Miguels-unprofessional conduct, however, continued. On or about May 39,
2014, at or around 5:53 a.n1., one of Plaintiff’s patients, “2," presented to Krikor Akmakji, M.D. at
the Kaiser-West({LA“Emergency Department complaining of abdominal pain. Based on his
observation of Patient "2"’s “exaggerated response to mild palpitation [of the abdomen]” and the
patiént’s history of repeated emergency department visits on May 25 and 28, 2014 with the same
complaints, Dr. Akmakji suspected drug-seeking behavior. Dr. Akmakji diagnosed low levels of
potassium and compressed bowels, for which he prescribed an anti-cramping medication and Extra
Strength Tylenol for pain, Dr. Akmakji then sent the patient home.

32.  Rather than go home, Patient "2" presented to the Kaiser-West LA Urgent Care
Clinic, consistent with drug-seeking behavior. Not realizing the patient came from the Emergency

Department, Urgent Care referred Patient "2" to the Primary Care Clinic to see Plaintiff. Later that

same day, at or around 9:43 a.m,, Patient "2" presented to Plaintiff at the Kaiser-West LA Primary
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Care Clinic. Upon reviewing the patient’s chart, and seeing the Emergency Department wristband
still on Patient "2"s wrist, Plaintiff referred the patient back to the Urgent Care Clinic in

accordance with standard operating procedures.

33.  .Atoraround 12:01 p.m. on that same day, Patient "2" presented to Dr. Miguel at the
Kaiser-West LA Urgent Care Clinic—the same physician who prescribed narcotic cough syrup to
Patient "1" when not medically necessary. Dr. Miguel evaluated and assessed Patient "2", and came
to a differential diagnosis of abdominal hernia vs. irri.table‘ bowel syndrome s/ drug-seeking
behavior. Dr. Miguel further noted that Patient "2" had been to the Emetgency Department earlier
that day, and copied/pasted Dr. Akmakji’s prior progress note infe\his encounter note. Despite
speaking to the Emergency Department and reaffirming th¢ Tikelihood of drug-seeking behavior,
Dr. Miguel prescribed Acetaminoﬁhen—Codeine 300-30 mg tablets, a Schedule IIT controlled
substance, for “severe pain relief.”

34, In essence, Dr. Miguel again. préseribed a controlled substance when not medicaily
necessary, in violation of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. §§ 801 ef seq.), 21 US.C. §
841(a); 21 C.F.R. 1306.04(a), the Cdlifornia Uniform Controlled Substances Act (CaL. HEALTH &
SAFETY C. §§ 11000 ef seq.), California Health & Safety Code sections 11152, 11153(a), and/or
California Business & Professions Code sections 2234(b), 2234(c), 2242(a), and 2266.

35.  On_grabout June 11, 2014, at or around 11:17 a.m., Plaintiff reported via email to
Edward Chiang,"D.0:;the Physician In Charge of the Urgent Care Clinic, and Margarita Roxas, the
Urgent Care Cliic department administrator, that Dr. Miguel inappropriately prescribed controlled
subsfances o Patient "2", as well as the fact that Patient "2" should have been seen in Urgent Care
Clinic and not have taken up a slot in the Primary Care Clinic reserved for patients with a pre-
scheduled appointment. In his response at or around 12:55 p.m. that same day, Dr. Chiang wrote,
“Hi Jay, [} We can discuss more in person. [] The ultimate question would be can the urgent care
provide any care for this patient that the regular clinic couldn’t?”

36.  Dr. Chiang's response is illuminating. First, the email evidences that the Kaiser
Permanente culture enables and supports physicians catering to patient demands—including

enabling drug-seeking behavior for diversion and/or abuse through “doctor shopping’—over
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providing quality, medically necessary care. If Kaiser Permanente cared about the care and safety
of its members, the “ultimate question” would not be in which clifiic was it more appropriate for
the patient to be seen. The “ultimate question” would be concerned with patient safety and the
provision of high quality medical care.

37.  Moreover, Dr. Chiang’s response illustrates Kaiser Permanente’s pattern and
practice of covering up wrong-doing, and retaliating against those who report such misconduct.
This unprofessional conduct exposed Dr. Miguel to potential discipline by the Médical B;oard of
California pursuant to California Business & Professions Code sections 2234(b) (gross negligence),
2234(c) (repeated negligent acts), 2242(a) (prescribing without an appropriate prior examination
and a medical indication) and/or 2266 (failure to maintain adequate-and accurate medical records to
justify the prescription). A finding upholding either of the Section 2234 charges could lead to a
revocation of Dr. Miguel’s license, or a term of probation, which are reported to the National
Practitioner Data Bank, and create a permanentezord of disciplinary action.

38.  Further, a pharmacist haSsaright and duty to ascertain the purpose for issuing a
prescription, when in doubt as to the legitirﬁate purpose under the law. Under the Code of Federal
Regulations, 21 C.F.R. 11306.04(a); and California Health & Safety Code section 11153(a), Dr. |
Miguel as well as the pharmacists who filled the prescriptions are responsible for the inappropriate
prescription of a cosiffelled substance. By reporting the inappropriate conduct of Dr. Miguel,
Plaintiff was expésing’not only Dr. Miguel, but also the pharmaciéts who filled those prescriptions,
who are employees of KFH. Rather than correct the behavior, however, Defendants punished
Plajfitiff.

39, On or about June 30, 2014, at or around 11:30 a.m., Plaintiff again reporied to Dr.
Chiang (the Physician In Charge of the Urgent Care Clinic) and Jennifer Lohne, D.O., the Assistant
Chief of the Family Medicine Department, the “recurring issue” of Dr. Miguel prescribing
controlled substances without a legitimate medical purpose. In his email to Drs. Chiang and Lohne,
Plaintiff attached the encounter note from Dr. Miguel’s care and treatment of Patient "1" on or

about December 23, 2013. The information in this email and the prior email in which Plaintiff
reported the unprofessional conduet of Dr. Miguel were transmitted to HUANG.
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40.  On or about July 17, 2014, approximately three weeks after Plaintiff discovered he
made Partner with SCPMG, Family Medicine Department partners held a meeting in which
Plaintiff’s elevation to Partner was revoked. As Chief of the Department, HUANG used his
influence and autifority to push through the revocation of Plaintiff’s promotion to Partner and thus
Plaintiff’s termination. Plaintiff’s termination was discriminatory and in direct retaliation for
Plaintiff’s complaints about Dr. Miguel.

41, On or about July 24, 2014, Plaintiff received a performange \feview follow-up
memorandum from HUANG. HUANG advised Plaintiff that based on Plaiitiff’s alleged failure to
obtain the support of the Family Medicine partners, one of the requifements for making partner at
SCPMG, and certain alleged performance issues, Plaintiff was not-eligible for partnership and his
contract would not be renewed. HUANG used the performanée review memorandum to cover up
the retaliatory decision to terminate Plaintiff. Plaintiff-“vas terminated from his employment
effective on or about September 1, 2014.

42, Oninformation and belief>Pr-Miguel remains {vorking at Kaiser-West LA to date.

43.  In the week followingthe July 24, 2014 meeting with HUANG, and while Plaintiff
was still working at Kaiser-West LA, Dr. Lohne, the Assistant Chief, began reconfiguring
Plaintiff’s office so she could move into it. On or about September 1, 2014, Plaintiff also received a
“Happy Anniversary’! lester from Howard Fullman, M.D., FACG, FACP, the Area Medical
Director, thankifg Plaintiff for his continued service to Kaiser Permanente and reminding Plaintiff
to take the timie 16 care for his own health. The letter from Dr. Fullman illustrates that Plaintiff was
ind¢ed promoted to partner, until the retaliatory and discriminatory termination. by Defendants, and
each of them.

44,  Kaiser Permanente had, and has, policies and procedures to investigate misconduct

by its health care professionals through peer review proceedings, and/or other avenues. Plaintiff’s

'report should have prompted such investigations. However, these peer review and/or other

investigations may trigger reporting requirements not only to the Joint Commission, the

organization which accredits and certifies health care organizations and programs throughout the

United States, but also to the California Medical Board pursuant to the California Business &
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Professions Code sections 805 and/or 805.01, the California Department of Public Health, and/or
other federal and/or state agencies. Such reports reflect poorly on Kaiser Permanente and the
quality of medical care Kaiser provides. To protect its reputation, Defendants, and each of them,
terminated Plaintiff in retaliation for exposing Dr. Miguel's inappropriate prescribing of narcotics.

45.  Plaintiff’s health and carcer have been materially and adversely affected, and
irreparably harmed and damaged by the conduct of the Defendants, and each of them. To protect
the reputation of Kaiser Permanente, Defendants, and each of them, retaliated against Plaintiff for
reporting the medically unnecessary care of Dr. Miguel, which endangered the safety of not only
those patients, but also others who might be affected by the misuseand/or abuse of prescription
controlled substances. As a direct and proximate consegience ef speaking out against such
conduct, and standingr up for his and others’ rights, and fofthe rights of his patients—which
constitutes protected activity under state and federal law—=Defendants, and each of them, retaliated
against Plaintiff and subjected Plaintiff to adverse employment actions. Those adverse employment
actions include but are not limited to: térmigation, failure to promote, and damage to reputation.
The wrongful conducf of Defendants(and each of them, is continuing and ongoing as of the present
date,

46.  Plaintiff has—suffered both general and special damages in the past and present and
will continue to suffer(such damages in the future for an unknown period of time. This has caused |
damage to his priffessional reputation, his ability to promote, his ability to work, will cause him to
have to take a'different retirement path, has caused him to lose overtime opportunities and pay, and
will/adversely affect his income, retirement, and other benefits. Moreover, it has adversely affected
his personal health and well being, including medical expenses, that are anticipated into the future
and may -force an early retirement. Plaintiff has also suffered extensive general damages in the
form of anxiety, anguish, and mental suffering. Plaintiff’s damages are continuing and in an

amount not yet determined, but in excess of $25,000.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

BY PLAINTIFF AGAINST KAISER CORPORATE DEFENDANTS
AND DOES 1-100, INCLUSIVE

WRONGFUL TERMINATION IN VIOLATION OF PUBLIC POLICY (T4MENY & ITS PROGENY)

47.  Plaintiff re-alieges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation
contained in paragraphs 1-46 of this complaint as though fully set forth herein again.

48.  According to the White House Office of the National Drug Cotitrdl Policy, “The
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention [hereinafter, "CDC"] has classitted prescription drug
abuse as an epidemic. While there has been a marked decrease in the'use of some illegal drugs like
cocaine, data from the National Survey on Drug Use and Health (NSDUH) show that nearly one-
third of people aged 12 and over who used drugs for _the first time in 2009 began by using a
prescription drug non-medically.”

49.  In his 2010 National Drug Confrol Strategy report to Congress, President Barack
Obama stated, “Drug use endangers the health-and safety of every American, depletes financial and
human resources, and deadens the spirivof many of our communities. Whether struggling with an
addiction, worrying about a loyed-ong’s substance abuse, or being a victim of drug-related crime,
millions of people in this gountry/live with the devastating impact of illicit drug use every day.”

50.  In the((same 2010 report, Director of National Drug Control Policy R. Gil
Kerlikowske wrafe, “Drug overdose deaths surpass gunshot deaths in our country, and in 16 states,
overdose deaths)are a more common cause of accidental death than car crashes. Drugged driving
has flow been identified at higher levels than alcohol-impaired driving. Prescription drug abuse is
at record levels.”

51.  According to CDC Director Thomas Frieden, M.D., M.P.H., “Overdoses involving
prescription painkillers are at epidemic levels and now kill more Americans than heroin and
cocaine combined.” Per the CDC website: “Drug overdose was the leading cause of injury death in
2012. Among people 25 to 64 years old, drug overdose caused more deaths than motor vehicle

traffic crashes. Drug overdose death rates have been rising steadily since 1992, with a 117%
increase from 1999 to 2012 alone.”
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2. Addressing the prescription drug abuse epidemic is one of the three signature
initiatives of the National Drug Control Strategy. The identification of inappropriéte prescribing,
dispensing; and drug-seeking behavior is one component of this initiative.

53. It is a violation of public policy to discharge someone from employment for

reporting suspected unsafe patient care and conditions, which include the inappropriate prescribing

of narcotic drugs.

34.  Plaintiff made oral and/or written reports and complaints regarding the prescription
of controlled substances without legitimate medical purpose to Defendants, and each of them,
which Plaintiff reasonébly suspected were in violation of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C.
§§ 801 ef seq.), 21 US.C. § 841(a); 21 C.F.R. 1306.04(z), the California Uniform Controlled
Substances Act (CAL. HEALTH & SAFETY C. §§ 11000 et seq?; California Health & Safety Code
sections 11152, 11153(a), and/or California Business <& Professions Code sections 2234(b),
2234(c), 2242(a), and 2266. These oral/and or/wiitten reports and complaints were a substantial
motivating reason for Plaintiff’s terminationand>other adverse actions against him.

55. As lega!l result of the(above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of them,
Plaintiff has sustained and will. continue to sustain physical, mental, and emotional injuries, pain,
distress, suffering, anguish;fright, nervousness, grief, anxiety, worry, shame, mortification, injured
feelings, mental suffering, shock, humiliation, and indignity, as well as other unpleasant physical,
mental, and emofional’reactions, damages to good name, reputation, standing in the community,
and other non<economic damages.

56 As a further legat result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff was required, and/or in the future may be required, to engage in the services of
health care providers, and incurred expenses for medicines, health care appliances, modalities,
and/or other related expenses in a sum to be ascertained according to proof.

57.  As a further legal resuit of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff was and/or will be hindered, prevented, and/or precluded from performing
Plaintiff’s usual activities, namely a Family Medicine physician, causing Plaintiff to sustain

damages for loss of income, wages, earnings, and earning capacity, and other economic damages,
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in an amount to be ascertained according to proof. Plaintiff claims such amount as damages
together with prejudgment interest puisuant to California Civil Code section 3287 and/or any other

L

provision of law providing for prejudgment interest.

58.  Asa further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendaﬁts, and each of
them, Plaintiff suffered incidental, consequential, and/or special damages, in an amount according

to proof.

59.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendasdis, and each of
them, Plaintiff has and will continue to incur attorneys’ fees and costs in an amount according to
proof.

60. As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid untawful acts of Defendants, and
each of them, Plaintiff suffered stress-related health consequences. Plaintiff claims general
damages for such health problems in an amount to be provéh at time of trial.

61.  Defendants’ actions constituted/@ wiltful violation of the above-mentioned federal
and state laws. The conduct of Defendanis-described herein above was outrageous and was
executed with malice, fraud, and oppfession, and with conscious disregard for Plaintiff’s rights and
the ri ghts of others, and further, with the intent, design, and purpose of injuring Plaintiff.

62.  Defendants;/and-¢ach of them, through its officers, managing agents, employees
and/or supervisors,authorized, allowed, permitted, condoned, ratified, and/or enabled the
retaliation and/6f ottiér wrongful conduct as described herein. By reason thereof, Plaintiff is
entitled to.an award of punitive damages in an amount according to proof at the time of trial.

63.— Defendants, and each of them, committed the wrongful acts alleged herein by acting
knowingly and wilifully, with the wrongful and illegal deliberate intention of injuring Plaintiff,
from improper motives amounting to malice, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights.
Plaintiff is thus entitled to recover nominal, actual, compensatory, punitive, and exemplary
damages in amounts according to proof at time of trial, in addition to any other remedies and

damages allowable by law.

i
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SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

BY PLAINTIFF AGAINST ALL DEFENDANTS

WHISTLEBLOWER RETALIATION (CAL. HEALTH & SAFETY C. § 1278.5)

64.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation
contained in paragraphs 1-63 of this Complaint as though fully set forth herein again.

65. At all times herein mentioned, California Health & Safety Code section 1278.5 was
in full force and binding on Defendants, and each of them.

66.  California Health & Safety Code section 1278.5(a) statesi“Ihe Legislature finds
and declares that it is the public policy of the State of California ¢ _encourage patients, nurses,
members of the medical staff, and other health care workers td-notify government entities of
suspected unsafe patient care and conditions. The Legislature éricourages this reporting in order to

protect patients and in order to assist those accreditation’and government entities charged with

. ensuring that health care is safe. The Legislature finds and declares that whistlebiower protections

apply primarily to issues relating to the<tare;-services, and conditions of a facility and are not

intended to conflict with existing pfovisions in state and federal law relating to employee and

-employer relations.”

67.  California Healtiv& Safety Code section 1278.5(b) prohibits any health facility from
discriminating or retaliating, in any manner, against any member of the medical staff because that
person has presetited @ grievance, complaint, or report to the facility, or to the medical staff of the
facility. Section/1278.5(c) prohibits any enﬁty that owns or operates a health facility, or which
own§ or gperates any other health facility, from discriminating or retaliating against any person
because that person has taken any actions pursuant to this subdivision. Defendants, and éach of
them, are subject to these prohibitions. -

68.  Plaintiff made oral and/or written reports and complaints to Defendants, and each of
them, by and through their agents and/or employees, regarding the prescription of controlled
substances without legitimate medical purpose in violation of the Controlled Substances ActA(21
U.S.C. §§ 801 er seq.), 21 US.C. § 841(a); 21 C.F.R. 1306.04(a), the California Uniform

Controlled Substances Act (CAL. HEALTH & SAFeTY C. §§ 11000 ef seq.), California Health &
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Safety Code sections 11152, 11153(a), and/or California Business & Professions Code sections
2234(b}), 2234(c), 2242(a), and 2266. These reports occurred on or about June 11, 2014 (regarding
Dr. Miguel inappropriately prescribing  Acetaminophen-Codeine, a Schedule III controlled
substance) and on or about June 30, 2014 (regarding Dr. Miguel inappropriate prescribing
Promethazine and Codeine, a narcotic cough syrup and Schedule V controlled substance).

69.  Defendants, and each of them, retaliated and discriminated against Plaintiff, after
Plaintiff reported the conduct of Dr. Miguel as described above to Dr. ChiangZthe Physician in
Charge of the Urgent Care Clinic, and Dr. Lohne, the Assistant Chief of Famuly Medicine, which
was reported to HUANG. On or about July 24, 2014, Plaintiff wad notified by HUANG that he
would be terminated effective September 1, 2014. Plaintiff alsé-was subject to other adverse‘
employment actions, including but limited to: failure to proriiote, damage to his reputation, and
other acts intended to retaliate against him.

70.  Plaintiff’s termination and the/other adverse employment actions against him
occurred within 120 days of Plaintiff réporting the violations of federal and state law identified
herein, creating a rebuttable presumpfion that such discriminatory actions were in retaliation for his
reporting, pursuant to California Health & Safety Code section 1278.5(d)(1).

71, As legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of them,
Plaintiff has sustained and will continue to sustain physical, mental, and emotional injuries, pain,
distress, suffeting, anguish, fright, nervousness, grief, anxiety, worry, shame, mortification, injured
feelings, mental suffering, shock, humiliation, and indignity, as well as other unpleasant physical,
merital, and“emotional reactions, damages to good name, reputation, standing in the community,
arj.d other non-economic damages.

72.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff was required, and/or in the future may be required, to engage in the services of
health care providers, and incurred expenses for medicines, health care abpliances, modalities,
and/or other related expenses in a gurn to be ascertained according to proof,

73.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of

them, Plaintiff was and/or will be hindered, prevented, and/or precluded from performing

17
Complaint for Damages




-~ o

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27
28

o @
Plaintiff’s usual activities, namely a Family Medicine physician, causing Plaintiff to sustain
damages for loss of income, wages, earnings, and earning capacity, and other economic damages,
in an amount to be ascertained according to proof. Plaintiff claims such amount as damages
together with prejudgment interest pursuant to California Civil Code section 3287 and/or any other
provision of law providing for prejudgment interest.

74.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff suffer_ed incidental, consequential, and/or special damages, in an\dmount according
to proof.

75, As a further legal resuit of the above-described condtitt of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff has and will continue to incur attorneys’ fees and\¢osts in an amount according to
proof,

76.  As a direct and proximate result of the\aforesaid unlawful acts of Defendants, and
each of them, Plaintiff suffered stress-relatéd health consequences. Plaintiff claims general
damages for such health problems in an amouiitto be proven at time of trial.

77.  Defendants’ actions c@nstituted a willful violation of the above-mentioned federal
énd state laws. The conduct .of-Defendants described herein above was outrageous and was
executed with malice, fraud;and“oppression, and with conscious disregard for Plaintiff’s rights and
the rights of others, and fusther, with the intent, design, and purpose of injuring Plaintiff.

78. Defendants, and each of them, through its officers, managing agents, employees
and/or supe'rvisors, authorized, allowed, permitted, condoned, ratified, and/or enabled the
retaliation -and/or other wrongful conduct as described herein. By reason thereof, Plaintiff is
entitled to an award of exemplary damages in an amount according to proof at the time of trial.

76.  Defendants, and each of them, committed the wrongful acts alleged herein by acting
knowingly and willfully, with the wrongful and illegal deliberate intention of injuring Plaintiff,
from improper motives amounting to malice, and in conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights.
Plaintiff is thus entitled to recover nominal, actual, compensatory, and exemplary damages in

amounts according to proof at time of trial, in addition to any other remedies and damages

ailowable by law.
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
BY PLAINTIFF AGAINST KAISER CORPORATE DEFENDANTS

AND DOES 1-100, INCLUSIVE

WHISTLEBLOWER RETALIATION (CAL. LABOR C. § 1102.5)

80.  Plaintiff rc-alleges and incorporates by reference each and every allegation

_contained 1n paragraphs 1-79 of this complaint as though fully set forth herein again.

§1. At all times herein mentioned, California Labor Code section, )J02)5 was in full
force and effect and was binding on these Defendants, and each of them.,

82.  Defendants, and each of them, made, adopted, and/¢f entorced rules, regulations,
and/or policies designed to prevent employees from disclosing Sinformation to a person with
authority over the employee, or to another employee whe has &uthority to investigate, discover, or
correct the violation or noncompliance, which Plaintift had reasonable cause to believe disclosed
violations of state or federal statutes, or state 6r federal rules and regulations, including but not
limited to the Controlled Substances Act{Z1-1:S.C. §§ 801 et seq.), 21 U.S.C. § 841(a); 21 CFR.
1306.04(a), the California Uniform Controlled Substances Act (CAL. HEALTH & SAFETY C. §§
11000 ef seq.), California Health"® Safety Code sections 11152, 11153(a), and/or California
Business & Professions Code seetions 2234(b), 2234(c), 2242(a), and 2266.

83.  Plaintiff made oral and/or written reports and complaints regarding the prescription
of controlled substancés without legitimate medical purpose to Defendants, by and through their
agents and/oreniployees, to a person with authority over the employee, or to another employee
who’has _authority to investigzite, discover, or correct the violation or noncompliance, which
Plaintiff had reasonable cause to believe disclosed violations of state or federal statutes, or state or
federal rules and regulations, including but not limited in violations of the Controlled Substances
Act (21 U.S.C. §§ 801 ef seq.), 21 US.C. § 841(a); 21 C.F.R. 1306.04(a), the California Uniform
Controlled Substances Act (CAL. HEALTH & SAFETY C. §§ 11000 ef seq.), California Health &
Safety Code sections 11152, 11153(a), and/or California Business & Professions Code sections

2234(b), 2234(c), 2242(a), and 2266.
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84,  Defendants, and each of them, retaliated against Plaintiff for disclosing information,
and/or refusing to engage in the illegal activity, to Defendants, by and through their agents and/or
employees, to a person with authority over the employee, or to another employee who has authority
to investigate, discover, or correct the violation or noncompliance, which Plaintiff had reasonable

cause to believe disclosed violations of state or federal statutes, or state or federal rules and

regulations, as identified herein.

85.  As a result, Plaintiff was subject to adverse employment actibns ineluding but not
limited to: tetmination, failure to promote, damage to his reputation, and—various other acts
intended to retaliate against him.

86. A motivating factor for the Defendants t¢engage in the foregoing adverse
employment actions against Plaintiff was to retaliate for Plaitiff's refusal to engage in iflegal
activity and/or his engaging in the protected activities\of disclosing information to Defendants, by
and through their agents and/or employees, to7a person with authority over the employee, or to
another employee who has authority <to—investigate, discover, or correct the violation or
noncompliance, which the Plaintiff h4d>reasonable cause to believe disclosed violations of state or
federal statutes, or violations o¥-moncompliance with state or federal rules or regulations, as
identified herein.

87.  As legl result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of them,
Plaintiff has sustdined’and will continue to sustain physical, mental, and emotional injuries, pain,
distress, suffcri;;g, anguish, fright, nervousness, grief, anxiety, worry, shame, mortification, injured
feeljfigs, pienttal suffering, shock, humiliation, and indignity, as well as other unpleasant physical,
mental, and emotional reactions, damages to good name, reputation, standing in the community,
and other non-economic damages.

88.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff was required, and/or in the future may be required, to engage in the services ofA
health care providers, and incurred expenses for medicines, health care appliances, .mbdalities,

and/or other related expenses in a sum to be ascertained according to proof.
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89.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff was and/or will be hindered, prevented, and/or precluded from performing
Plaintiff’s usual activities, namely a Family Medicine physician, causing Plaiﬁtiff to sustain
damages for loss of income, wages, eamings, and earning capacity, and other economic damages,
In an amount to be ascertained according to proof. Plaintiff claims such amount as damages
together with prejudgment interest pursuant to California Civil Code section 3287 and/or any other
provision of law providing for prejudgment interest.

90. As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defertdants, and each of
them, Plaintiff suffered incidental, consequential, and/or special darfages,in an amount according
to proof.

91.  As a further legal result of the above-described conduct of Defendants, and each of
them, Plaintiff has and will continue to incur attorneys’ fe€s and costs in an amount according to
proof.

92.  As a direct and prdximate resultof the aforesaid unlawful acts of Defendants, and
each of them, Plaintiff suffered stress-related health consequences. Plaintiff claims general
damages for such health problemS i an amount to be proven at time of trial.

93.  Defendants’—actions constituted a willful violation of the above-mentioned federal
and state laws. Theconduct of Defendants described herein above was outrageous and was
executed with mafice,-fraud, and oppression, and with conscious disregard for Plaintiff’s rights and
the rights of others, and further, with the intent, design, and purpose of injuring Plaintiff,

94. Defendants, and each of them, through its officers, managing agents, employees
and/or—supervisors, authorized, allowed, permitted, condoned, ratified, and/or enabled the
retaliation éndfor other wrongful conduct as described herein. By reason thereof, Plaintiff is
entitled to an award of punitive damages in an amount according to proof at the time of trial.

95.  Defendants, and each of them, committed the wrongful acts alleged herein by acting
knowingly and willfully, with the wrongful and illegal deliberate intention of injuring Plaintiff,
from improper motives amounting to malice, and iﬁ conscious disregard of Plaintiff’s rights.

Plaintiff is thus entitled to recover nominal, actual, compensatory, punitive, and exemplary
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' damages in amounts according to proof at time of trial, in addition to any other remedies and

damages allowable by law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks judgment against all Defendants, and each of them, on all

Causes of Action for:

1. Physical, mental, and emotional injuries, pain, distress, suffering, anguish, fright,
nervousness, grief, anxiety, worry, shame, mortification, injured feelings, shack: imiliation and
indignity, as well as other unpleasant physical, mental, and emotional\reactions, damages to
reputation, and other non;economic damages, in a sum to be ascertaifigd according to proof;

2. Loss of wages, income, earnings, earning gapacify, support, domestic services,
benefits, and other economic damages in a sum to be ascertainédaccording to proof;

3. Health care, services, supplies, medicines;health care appliances, modalities., and
other related expenses in a sum to be ascertained agcording to proof; |

4, -Other actual, consequentialj aad/or incidental damages in a sum to be ascertained

according to proof;

5. For punitive and.¢xémplary damages as allowed by law and according to proof;
0. For reinstatgient-as pursuant to statute;

7. Attorngy tees and costs of suit pursuant to statute;

8. Casts of suit herein incufred;

5. Pre-judgment interest;

10~ Such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

Dated: October 30, 2014 McNICHOLAS & McNICHOLAS, LLP

Alxésa K. Schabloski

Attorneys for Plaintiff
JAY ESPEJO, M.D., M.P.H.
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DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: October 30, 2014 ~ McNICHOLAS & McNICHOLAS, LLP

By:

Matthew S. %1cNicholas
Alyssa K. Schabloski
Attorneys for Plaintiff

JAY ESPEJO, M.D5-M.P.H.
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b4 S O A7250 Premises Liability (e.g., slip and fall) 14
L4 P N
el 4 persf,);:f[n}uw 3 A7230 Intentional Bedily Injury/Property Damage/Wrongful Qeath (e.g., 1.4
_.i:t § Property Damage assault, vandalism, etc.) s
e Wf°"‘-}’2“33)nea”‘ I A7270 intentional Infliction of Emotional Distress v ,
1,4
O A7220 Other Personal Injury/Property Damage/Wrangful Death '
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUMBER
ESPEJO v. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PERMANENTE, et al.
A B c
Civil Case Cover Shest Type of Action Applicable Reasons -
Category No. {Check only one) See Step 3 Above

Business Tort {07} O AG029 Other Commercial/Business Tort (not fraud/breach of contract) 1.3
£3 —
g_: Civil Rights (08) O AB005 Civil Rights/Discrimination 1,2,3
£% )
=0 Defamation (13) 0 AG010 Defamation (slanderflibet) 1,2, 3.
= 2
=)
= E Fraud {16) O A8013 Fraud (no contract) 3.,2.3
E:
i) 0 AB017 Legal Malpractice 1,2
g2 Professional Negligence {25) N 4 123
g E O AB050 Other Professional Malpractice {not medical or lagal) 1.,2.3
=]

Other (35) 3 AB025 Other Non-Personal Injury/Property Damage tort 2.3

e, S ireem—

LASC Approved 03-04

AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION

- —— —— — |
s Wrongful Termination {36) [ A8037 Wrongful Termination 1.2,3.
E
)
L O AB024 Other Employment Complaint Case 1,2.3
g' Other Employment (15} Py P e
1L O A6109 Labor Commissioner Appeals 10.
o— — e — ——— li— . T ———— —— e———————
0 AB004 Breach of Rentali.ease Contrach (nétdnlawful detainer or wrongful
evictian) 2.5.
Breach of Contract/ Warranty . 2,5
(06} O A8S008 ContractWarranty Bréach-Seller Plaintiff (no fravdinegligence) e
{not Insurance) O A6013 Negligent Breach of. CdntractWarranty (no fraud) 1.2.5.
O As028 Other Breach-o{ ContractWarranty (not fraud or negligence) 1.2.5.
] _ DO A8002 Collegfiany Case-Seller Plaintitf 2.5. 6.
= Collections (09)
3 O A6012 Ofher Pramissory Note/Colffections Case 2., 5.
Insurance Coverage (18) 0 ABQ15\Insurance Coverage (hot complex} 1.,2,5,8.
[I{ AB0B9 Contractual Fraud 1,2,3.,5
Other Contract (37) 0. AB0341 Tortious Interference 1,2,3.,5
0O A6027 Other Contract Dispute(not breachiinsuranceffraud/negligence) 1., 2.,3., 8.
——— e ————————— —
Eminent Domaindinverse \ . .
Condemnation{14) O A7300 Eminent Domain/Condemnation Number of parcels 2.
E Wrongfol Eviction {33) O AB6023 Wrongful Eviction Case 2.,6.
o
; 0O A6018 Mortgage Foreclosure "
- a
* o Other-Real Property (26) O A6032 Quiet Title “
T £ AG060 Cther Real Property (not eminent domain, landlord/tenant, foreclosure) | 2.6
i - Uniawful Deia(g'n‘e)r-CommercraI O A8021 Unlawful Detainer-Commercial {not drugs or wrongful eviction} 2,6
=
=
Ll § Unlawfuf Det(a:;r;r-Rsmdentsal O AB020 Unlawful Detainer-Residential {not drugs or wrongful eviction) 2.6
=
Unlawful Detainer- .
P E; Post-Foreclosure (34) 0 A6020F Unlawtul Detainer-Post-Foreclosure 2". 6.
]
= Unlawful Detainer-Drugs (38) {00 AB022 Unlawful Detainer-Drugs 2., 6.
I..-.:
{=
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SHORT TITLE: CASE NUMBER
ESPEJO v. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA FPERMANENTE, et al.
A | B c
Civil Case Cover Sheet Type of Action : Applicable Reasons -
Category No. " (Check oniy one) See Siep 3 Above
Asset Forfei{ure {05) 0 AG108 Asset Forfsiture Case 2.,6.
g Petition re Arbitration (11) O A6115 Petilion lo Compel/Confirm/Vacate Arbitration 2,5,
=
<]
o O AG151 Writ - Administrative Mandamus 2.8
=2
% Writ of Mandate (02) 00 AB152 Writ - Mandamus on Limited Court Case Matter 2.
3 0 AG153 Wit - Other Limiled Court Case Review 2
Other Judicial Review (33) | O AS150 Other Writ fJudicial Review . 2.8
—_——— — — e —
s Antitrust/Trade Regulation (03} [ ] A6003 AntitrustTrade Regulation 1,2.,8.
£
2 Gonstruction Defect {10) £} A6007 Construction Defect 1,2,3
)
™ . . .
£ claims InvobaMase Tt | 7 a6006 Claims Involving Mass Tort 1,2.8.
E
=]
‘;’\ Securities Litigation (28) O AB035 Securities Litigation Case 1.,2,8.
®
& Toxic Tort ) .
G
@ Environmental (30) O AB03& Toxic Tort/Environmental 1,2,3.,8
>
g Insurance Coverage Clai
o fram Complex Cgse (:'1';15 O AB014 Insurance Coverage/Subrogation (complex case only) 1.2.5,8.
O AG141 Sister State Yodgment 2,9
E E 0 AG160 Abstractof Judgment 2. 6.
§ -E” Enforcement 0O Ag107 Confession of Judgment (nan-domestic relations) 2.0
8 3 of Judgment (20) O A6140 (Administrative Agency Award (not unpaid taxes) 2,8
lf' kS O A8114\ Retiion/Certificate for Entry of Judgment on Unpaid Tax 2.8
G—A8112~Other Enforcement of Judgment Case 2,8,8.
nn——__ﬂm_—____w__—#
e ——————— e e ettt
® RICO {27) El "A6033 Racketeering (RICO) Case 1.,2.8
S E
§ % O AB030 Declaratary Relief Oniy 1.2,8
?:; 8 Other Compidints 0O AB040 Injunctive Rekef Only (not domestic/harassment) 2,8
é T (Nat SpacifieAboye) (12) | O A6011 Other Commercial Complaint Case (non-tortinon-complex) 1,2.8
© 0O AB000 Other Civil Complaint {(non-tort/non-complex) 1.,2.,8
Rarinership Corporation O A5113 Partnership and Corporate Governance Case 2.8
[, Governance (21)
C 0 AB121 Civil Harassment 2.,3,9
m ow»m
25 [ A6123 Workplace Harassment 2.,3.,9
@ =
ER " O AB124 Elder/Dependent Adult Abuse Case 2.3,9.
= o Other Petitions
§ T {Not Specified Above) O AB190 Election Contest 2.
=0 “3) O AB110 Petition for Change of Name 2,7
- O AB170 Petition for Relief from Late Claim Law 2.,3.,4,8.
. [0 AB100 Other Civil Petition 2.8
,,...
LAGIV 109 {Rev. 03711} CIVIL CASE COVER SHEET ADDENDUM Local Rule 2.0

LASC Approved 03-04 AND STATEMENT OF LOCATION Page 3 of 4




SHORT TITLE:
ESPEJO v. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PERMANENTE, et al,

CASE NUMBER

item Iil. Statement of Location: Enter the address of the accident, party's residence or place of business, performance, or other
circumstance indicated in Item 1., Step 3 on Page 1, as the proper reason for fifing in the court location you selacted.

ADDRESS:
REASON: Check th iate boxes f f ) A
under Colum:é foret:: fyr:: rc';:?ctig:e:m‘::r:‘: ::vr:gzzcstz:v::r / e 855 (4 'r/ dlt.e_. 8 ( Udﬂ fm ﬁ— 7# /‘;//
this case. -
Los A CA- Tool:
0. 2. 43, 04, 05. Os. 7. 08, O9. £110, Aé b&—; —"_"_"—1‘___
ciy:

STATE: 2IP COPE:

Item IV. Decfaration of Assignment; | declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Galifernia that the foregoing is true

and corect and that the sbove-entitled matter is properly filed for assignment to the StanleyMosk

courthouse in the
Central

District of the Superior Court of California, County of Los AngelesCode/Cig. Proc.,, § 392 et seq., and Local
Rule 2.0, subds. (b), (¢} and (d)}.

Dated: October 30, 2014

PLEASE HAVE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS COMPLETED AND READY TO BE FILED IN ORDER TO PROPERLY
COMMENCE YOUR NEW COURT CASE:

1. Original Complaint or Petition.

if filing a Complaint, a completed Surmifnors form for issuance by the Clerk.

2
3. Civil Case Cover Sheet, Judicigl Council form CM-610.
4

Civil Case Cover Sheet‘Addendum and Statement of Location form, LACIV 109, LASC Approved 03-04 (Rev.
031 1).

o

Payment in full of the'filing-fee, unless fees have been waived.

6. A signed order @ppointing the Guardian ad Litem, Judicial Coundil form CIV-040, if the plaintiff or petitioneris a
minor under18.years of age will be required by Court in order to issue a summons.

7. Additional copies of documents to be conformed by the Clerk. Coples of the cover sheet and this addendum
mustbe served aiong with the summons and complaint, or other initiating pleading in the case.
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